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128,577,813 94.91
5,663,905 4.18
1,232,016 0.91
135,473,734
12,571 100.00
2022 11

Signum Momentum Ltd

4/30/2025 0 2025/ /30| 143,390,000 | 100,215,271 | 128,577,813 | 94.91

Quartix Financial

Products 11 Ltd 2025/ /30| 143,390,000 | 41,962,268 5,663,905 4.18
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2022 11

2016 432,778,839 40,158 1.0241 95
2017 345,815,879 32,088 0.9210 85
2018 295,393,922 27,410 0.9377 87
2019 282,483,837 26,212 1.0035 93
2020 252,474,366 23,427 1.0234 95
2021 200,724,125 18,625 1.0239 95
2022 147,646,050 13,700 0.9484 88
2021 12 177,349,233 16,456 0.9900 92
2022 172,796,807 16,034 0.9805 91
170,155,756 15,789 0.9726 90

165,562,997 15,363 0.9547 89

161,225,485 14,960 0.9459 88

152,841,936 14,182 0.9445 88

148,899,454 13,816 0.9360 87

147,646,050 13,700 0.9484 88

143,470,757 13,313 0.9390 87

141,201,126 13,102 0.9342 87

10 137,851,583 12,791 0.9396 87

11 135,473,734 12,571 0.9361 87
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1.81

7.02

1.98

0.05

7.37

100x%

431,320,000 8,760,000 422,560,000
(431,320,000) (8,760,000) (422,560,000)
0 47,080,000 375,480,000
) (47,080,000) (375,480,000)
0 60,470,000 315,010,000
) (60,470,000) (315,010,000)
0 33,520,000 281,490,000
0 (33,520,000) (281,490,000)
0 34,790,000 246,700,000
) (34,790,000) (246,700,000)
0 50,680,000 196,020,000
) (50,680,000) (196,020,000)
0 40,350,000 155,670,000
) (40,350,000) (155,670,000)
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15 05
2022 31
2022 2021
5,828,519 540,828 8,724,508 809,547
2,740,876 254,326 4,464,204 414,233
7,14 144,896,552 13,444,951 196,240,674 18,209,172
16,801 1,559

153,482,748 14,241,664 209,429,386 19,432,953
3,191,760 296,163 5,830,275 540,991
358,322 33,249 456,322 42,342
3,550,082 329,412 6,286,597 583,333
155,670,000 14,444,619 196,020,000 18,188,696
(5,737,334) (532,367) 7,122,789 660,924
10 149,932,666 13,912,252 203,142,789 18,849,619
153,482,748 14,241,664 209,429,386 19,432,953

155,670,000 196,020,000
10 0.9631 89 1.0363 96

59/190



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15 05
2022 31
2022 2021
1,907,350 176,983 2,332,230 216,408
151 14 4 0
1,907,501 176,997 2,332,234 216,408
53,053 4,923 57,426 5,329
175,031 16,241 218,423 20,267
700,125 64,965 873,693 81,070
437,578 40,603 546,058 50,669
18,206 1,689 37,047 3,438
374,483 34,748 417,875 38,775
175,031 1,624 218,423 20,267
69,044 6,407 94,162 8,737
2,002,551 185,817 2,463,107 228,552
(95,050) (8,820) (130,873) (12,144)
14 (928,568) (86,162) 1,642,396 152,398
14 (12,792,879) (1,187,051) (1,503,909) (139,548)
(47,334) (4,392) (101,072) (9,378)
(13,768,781) (1,277,605) 37,415 3,472
(13,863,831) (1,286,425) (93,458) (8.672)

60/190



2020

2021

2021

2022

31

31

EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15 05
2022 31

246,700,000 246,700,000 22,891,293 8,422,450 781,519 255,122,450 23,672,812
(50,680,000) (50,680,000) (4,702,597) (1,206,203)  (111,924) (51,886,203) (4,814,521)
(93,458) (8,672) (93,458) (8,672)

196,020,000 196,020,000 18,188,696 7,122,789 660,924 203,142,789 18,849,619
196,020,000 196,020,000 18,188,696 7,122,789 660,924 203,142,789 18,849,619
(40,350,000) (40,350,000) (3,744,077) 1,003,708 93,134  (39,346,292) (3,650,942)
(13,863,831) (1,286,425) (13,863,831) (1,286,425)

155,670,000 155,670,000 14,444,619  (5,737,334)  (532,367) 149,932,666 13,912,252
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15 05
2022 31
2022 2021

(13,863,831) (1,286,425) (93,458) (8,672)
39,346,003 3,650,916 5,188,719 481,461

928,568 86,162 (1,642,396) (152,398)
12,792,879 1,187,051 1,503,909 139,548

(16,801) (1,559)

(98,000) (9,093) (83,752) 7,771)
39,088,818 3,627,051 51,566,022 4,784,811
(41,984,807) (3.895,770)  (57,316,714) (5,318,418)
(41,984,807) (3,895,770)  (57,316,714) (5,318,418)
(2,895,989) (268,719) (5.750,692) (533,607)
8,724,508 809,547 14,475,200 1,343,154
5,828,519 540,828 8,724,508 809,547
1,890,700 175,438 2,332,234 216,408
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOKD PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (ALD)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 July 2022

Motes 2022 2021

AU AL

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents [ 5828519 8.724.508
Amount due from broker 2,740,876 4,464,204
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7.14 144,896 552 196,240,674
Interest receivable 16,801 -
TOTAL ASSETS 153,482,748 209,429 386
LIABILITIES
Redemption payable 3,191,760 5,830,275
Accounts pavable and accrued liabilities 5 158,322 456,322
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,550,082 6,286,597
EQUITY
Unitholders® capital 3 155,670,000 196,020,000
(Deficity Surplus { 5.737.334) 7,122,789
TOTAL EQUITY 10 149,932,666 203,142,789
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 153 482,748 200 4 249 386
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 8 155,670,000 196,020,000

MET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT 10 .9631 1.0363

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of these financial statements,
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PHILOSOPFHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

Notes 2022 2021
AUD AL
INCOME
Interest income from performance linked notes 1,907,350 2,332,230
Other interest income 151 4
Total investment income 1,907,501 2,332,234
EXPENSES
Audit fees 5 53,053 537426
Agent company's fee 5 175,031 218,423
Distributor’s fee 5 700,125 873,693
Investment advisor fees 5 437,578 546,058
Legal fees 5 18,206 37,047
Management fees 5 374,483 417,875
Tmstee and trustee’s delegate fees 5 175,031 218423
Other operating expenses A 69,044 84,162
Total operaling expenses 2.002,551 2,463,107
NET LOSS BEFORE INVESTMENT AND
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES {85050} (130,873
INVESTMENT AND EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES
Met realised (loss)zain on financial assets at far value
through profit or loss 14 { 928.568) 1,642,396
Met change in unrealised loss on financial assets at
fair value throngh profit or loss 14 (12,792,879 { 1,503,909
MNet foreign exchange loss { 47.334) {101,072
i13.768.781) 37415
NET COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (13.563.831) [ 93.4358)

The accompanyving notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PHILOSOPFHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES [N EQUITY

Forthe yvear ended 31 July 2022

Wumber of
units  Unitholders’ (Deficity
outstanding capital Surplus Total equity
ALD ALD AUD
(Note 8) {Note 8)

At 1 Angust 2020 246,700,000 246,700,000 3422450 255,122 450
Redemption of units { 50,680,000} { 50,680,0007 ( 1,206,203) ( 51,886.203)
Met comprehensive loss - - 93.458) 93,458)
Ad 31 July 2021 196,020, 000 196, 020,000 7122780 203,142,789
AL 1 August 2021 196,020,000 196,020,000 7,122,789 203,142,789
Redemption of units { 40,350,000 {40,350,0007) 1,003,708 ( 3%346,292)
Net comprehensive loss . . (138638310 ( 13863831
AL3Y July 2022 155,670,000 155670000 ( 5737.334) 1499376606

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF

WINTON 15-05 (AUD)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met comprehensive loss for the vear
Adjustments for:
Proceeds from sale of financial assets af far value through
profit or loss
Met realised loss/{gain) on financial assets at fair value throngh
profit or loss
Met change in unrealized loss on financial assets al fair value
thromgh profit or loss
Increase in interest receivable
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Met cash flows generated from operating adivities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on redemption of units
Met cash flows used in financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Supplemental cash flow information:

Interest receivid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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( 13,863831) ( 93.458)
39,346,003 51,881,719
928,568 (  1,642.396)
12,792 879 1,503,909
i 16,801) -
( 98000} | 83,7523
39.088.818 51,566,022

{ 41,984.807) [ 57.316.714)
{ 41,984.807) [ 57.316.714)
( 2.895989) ( 5.750.692)
§.724.508 14,475,200
5828519 8,724,508
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

L. THE TEUST

Philosophic 2 Investment Trust (the “Trust”) is an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a
master trust deed dated 20 March 2015 under the laws of the Cayman Islands, regulated as a mutual
fund under the Mutual Funds Act (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, entered into between 10} EQ
Mamagement Bermuda Limited (the “Manager™) and HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the
“Trustee™). The Trust has been established as an umbrella unit trust with the ability to create and
establish separate portfolio or senes tmests (o which assets and liabilities attributable to such series
trust will be applied.

Bomd Plus Fund Linked to the Performance of Winton 15-05 (AUD) (the “Seres Trust™) is a series
trust of the Trust constituted pursuant to the master trust deed and a supplemental trust deed dated 14
May 2015 made between the Trustee and the Manager, As at 31 July 2022, two series trusts had been
established.

The investment objective of the Seres Trust is to pursue capital gain over the medium to long term.,
while aiming to ensure a net asset value per Unit at the time of the maturity date that is not less than
100 of the Anstralian Dollar (* AUD™) denominated offer price. The Manager aims to achieve such
mvestment objective by investing all of the proceeds from the 1ssue of wuts in 10-year AUD
denominated zero coupon nodes (each a* Zero Coupon Mote™) issned by Signum Momentwm Limited
(the “Zero Conpon Note Issuer” ) and 10-year AUD denominated performance linked notes (each a
“Performance Linked Note™) 1ssued by Cuartix Financial Products 11 Lumited (the “Performance
Linked MNote [ssuer™), The Zero Coupon Motes seek to provide their holders with protection of 10024
of the Zero Coupon Notes' principal amount (in AUD if such holders hold their Zero Coupon Notes
until the Mote Matunty Date. The remainng net proceeds from the issue of units, after investment in
the Zero Coupon Motes and payment of certan expenses, will be invested in the Performance Linked
Motes. Investment in the Performance Linked Notes will provide investors with exposure to the
performance of M A WOM FP Limited (the *Undedving Fund™.

[

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

Mew and amended standards and interpretations issued and effective for the financial vear beginning
1 Angnst 2021

There are no standards and interpretations that are effective for annnal periods beginning on or after
1 August 2021 which, in the opinion of management will cleary impact the Senes Tmst and applied
by the Series Trust for the first-time. The Series Trust also has not early adopted any other standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

¥

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES {continued)

New and amended standands and inferpretations issued but not vet effective for the financial vear
beoinming 1 August 2021 and not early Led

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not vet effective, up to the
date of ssuance of the Series Trust's financial statements are disclosed below. Management
anticipates that the adoption of these standards and amendments (o standards will have no material
impact on the financial statements of the Series Trust.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Inte rnational Accounting Standards (“IASY &
InFebruary 2021, the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (" [ASB") issued amendments to IAS
8. in whichit introduces a definition of “ accoumting estimates”. The amendments clafy the distinction
berween changes in acconnting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of
ermors, Also, they clanfy how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Eadier application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Senes Trost,

Diselosure af Aceounting Policles = Amendments fo IAS | and Infernational Financial Reporting
Standards (MTFRSY) Practice Statement 2

In February 2021, the TASE issued amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Mateniality Judzements, in which it provides guidance and examples to help entities apply matenality
judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting
policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their
“sigmificant” accounting policies with a requrement to disclose their “matenal” accounting policies
and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to IAS 1 are applicable for anmual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with
earlier application permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice Stalement 2 provide non-
mandatory gnidance on the application of the definition of matenal to accounting policy information,
an e ffective date for these amendments 13 nol necessary.

The Series Tmst is currently assessing the impact of the amendments to determine the impact they
will have on the Senes Trust's accounting policy disclosures,

1o
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

¥

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES {continued)

Amendments to TAS 1 Classification of Liahilities as Current or Nom-curvent
In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the
requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-cwrrent. The amendments clanfy:

What is meant by a right to defer settlement

That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right
That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instroment would
the terms of a liability not impact its classification

AT

The amendments are effective for reponting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Series Trst upon
adoption.

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Series Trust's financial statements requires manazement o make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount s of revenues, expenses, asseis and liabilities
and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty abont these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a matenal adjustment to the carmyving amount of the asset or hability
affected in futue periods.

Judgements

Inthe process of applying the Series Trust"s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounns recognised in the financial
statements:

(CFafmg concern

The Series Trust's management has made an assessment of the Series Trog s ability to continue as a
going concem and 15 satisfied that the Senes Trust has the resources to confinue i busness for the
foreseeable future. Futhermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubd upon the Senes Trus's ability to continue as a going concem. Therefore, the
financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis,

Estimates and assumptions

The kev assumptions conceming the fidure and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing amaterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial vear, are described below, The Senes Tma based its
wssumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances amd assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or arcumsances ansing that are bevond the control of the Seres Trust, Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they ocour,

11
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS {contined)

Foce s

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regolations and changes in tax
laws on foreign withholding tax. Given the wide range of international investments, differences ansing
berween the actual investment income and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax expense already recorded. The Series Trust
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of andits by the tax
authorities of the respective countnies in which it invests. The amounts of such provisions ane based
on vanous factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authonty. Such differences of interpretation
may arse on a wide vanety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respeciive
investment”s domicile. As the Series Trust assesses the probability for litigation and subsequent cash
ot flow with respect (o taxes as remote, no contingent liability has been recognised.

Fair value
For fair value of financial instruments, please refer to Mote 14.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accondance with IFRSs issued by the TASE. and
interpretations issned by Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“[FRIC™) of
the TASE. The accounting policies adopted are consigent with those of the previous financial year,
other than as disclosed in Mate 2.

The financal statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis, except for financial assets at
fair value through profit or less ("FVPL") that have been measured at fair valne. The financial
statements are presented in AUD, which is also the Senes Tra's fimctional currency, and all values
are rounded to the nearest AUD except where otherwise indicated,

.
Fevenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will fow to the Senes Trost and
when the revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income is recognised on a time apportioned basis
taking into account the principal owtstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.

Financial insinunenis

{1} Classification

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Series Trust classifies its financial assets and fnancial liabilities at
initial recognition into the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities discussed below.
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

ial ins ents {contined)
i} Classiffeatton (contimed)

Frranclal assels
The Series Trust classifies its financial assets as subsequent v measured at amortised cost or measured
at FVPL on the basis of both:

*  The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
*  The contractual cash flow charactenstics of the financial assets

Finanelal asseis measured af amoriised eost

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost i it is held within a business model whose objectivi
ig to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pavments of principal and interest {"SPPI™) on the
principal amonnt outstanding. The Series Tmst includes in this category cash and cash equivalents,
amount due fom broker and interest receivable,

Financial asseis measured ai FIVPL
A financial asset is measured at FVPL if:

(a) Itscontractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on speci fied dates that are SPP1 on the principal
amonnt outstanding; or

(by It 1= not held within a business model whose oljective is either to colled contractual cash flows,
or to both collect contractual cash flows and =ell; or

(c) Afinitial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured af FVFL when doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise anse
from measunng assets or habilites or recograsing the gaims and losses on them on different bases.

The Series Trst includes in this category:

#  Debt instruments. These include investments that are held under a business model to manage them
on a Fair value basis for investment income and fair value gains,

Financlal labilities

Financial liabilities measured af amertized cost

This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at FVPL. The Series Trust
includes in this category redemption payable, accounts payvable and accrued liabilities.

13
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AULD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

il Recognition

The Series Trust recognises a financial asset or liability when, and only when, it becomes a patty to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Series Trust commils o
purchase or sell the asset.

{1ii) Initiad measurement
Financial assets at FVPL are initially recorded in the stalement of financial position af fair value, All
transaction costs for such instruments are recognised directly in profit or loss,

Financial assets {other than those classified as at FVPL ) are measured initially at their fair value plus
any directly attribitable incremental costs of acquisition or issue,

{ivi Subaeguent measurement

Adter initial measurement, the Series Trust measures financial instruments which are classified as at
FVPL at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair valne of those financial instruments are recorded
in “net change in unrealised loss on financial assets at FVYPL” in the statement of comprehensive
meome. Interest and dividends eamed or paid on these instroments are recorded separately in inferest
revenne or expense and dividend revenne or expense inthe statement of comprehensive income.,

Financial liabilities, other than those classified as st FVPL, are measured at amortised cod using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are recogmsed in profit or loss when the habilities are
derecognised, as well as through the amortisalion process.

The effective interest method 15 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant pemod.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipis
through the expected life ofthe financial instroment or, when appropriate, a shorter penod, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Series Trust estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instruments but does not consider fiture credit losses, The calculation includes all fees paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and all other premiums or discomnts,

vl Drerecogmition
A fAnancial asset (or, where applicable a pant of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecogmised where:
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AULD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

i 7 ents (comtinued)
{'n.;i Dﬂmagn.fﬂ'an {cmn.r‘uuf:ﬂ

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
*  The Series Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
chhgaunn o pay the received cash flows in full without matenal delay to a third pany under a
“pass-through™ arrangement; and
*  Either (2) the Series Tmst has transfemed substantially all the risks and rewands of the asset, or
(b)the Series Trst has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Series Trust has transfemred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arangement, amnd has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transfermred control of the asset. the asset is recogmsed to the extent of the
Series Trost's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Series Trust also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflecis the nghts and obhgations that the Series Trust has retained.

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Fair value measuremernt

The Series Trust measures financial instnoments @t fair value at each reporting date, Fair value is the
price that would be recerved to sell an asset or pad to transfer a hability in an orderly transaction
berween market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place either;

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
*  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageos market for the asset or hability,

The principal or the most advantageons market must be accessible to the Series Trust.

The fair value of an asset or a liabality is measured nEng the assumptions that market paricipants
wonld nse when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market pamicipant's ability o

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AULD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement {continued)
The fair value of financial instruments is based ontheir quoted market prices on arecognised exchange
and valued at last traded price or sourced from a reputable broker or connterparty, in the case of non-
exchange traded instruments, at the reporting date without any deduction for estimated futiure selling

COsLE,

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by wsing
valuation techniques deemed to be appropriate in the cimumstances. Valuation techniques include the
market approach (i.e.. wsing recent arm's length market transactions adjusted as necessary amd
reference to the current market value of another instmument that is substantially the same) and the
income approach (1.e., discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models making as much use
of available and supportable market data as possible).

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
18 sigmificant (o the fair value measurement as a whole:

*  Level | - Quoted (unadjusted ) market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities

*  Level 2 - Valoation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement 15 directly or indirectly observable

*  Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 15 significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and habihties that are recogmsed in the financial statements on & recurring basis, the Senes
Truet determines whether transfers have ocourred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that 15 significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting perod.

, f ial
For financial assets at amortised codt, impairment sllowances are recognised under the general
approach where expected credit losses are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures where there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Seres Tmst is required
to provide For credit losses that result from possible default events within the next 12 months, For
those credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recogmtion, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposire imespective of the timing of the de fanlt.

1&
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AULD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign cumency transactions
The Series Trust's functional and presentation curmrency is the AUD.

The fundional cumency refleds the cumency in which the Seres Tmst primarily generates and
expends cash from its activities,

Transactions during the penod in cumencies other than the fundional curency are recorded at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign cumencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange prevaling at the reporting penod.
Realised and nnrealizsed exchange gains or losses on foreign cumency transactions are charged or
credited as profit or loss in the statement of comprebensive income as net exchange gains or losses.

Mom-monetary items that are measured in temms of historcal cost in a foreign cwmency ane translated
wsing the exchange rates as at the dates of the inital transaction, Mon-monetary items measured at far
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determingd.

The rate of exchange in effiect at 31 July 2022 were AUD L =USDOTOOT (2021: AUDL = USD0,T380),
AUDI1 = GBPOLTAT (2021 AUD] = GBPO.52%) and AUDI = JPY93.1896 (2021: AUDI =
JPY80,8387).

Related parties
A party is considered to be related vo the Series Trust if

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person
(i} has control or joint control over the Series Trust:
(i) has significant influence over the Series Trust; or
{iii} is a member of the key management personnel of the Series Trust or of a parent of the
Series Trust;
or

(by  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Series Trust are members of the same group

(ii) ome entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {or of a parent. subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the entity}):

(1ii) the entity and the Series Tros are joint ventures of the same thind party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity:

(v} the n}r:lit}' is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Series
Trust or an entity related to the Seres Trus;

{vi} the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a)

(vii} a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management persormel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

{viiijthe entity, or any member of the Series Trust of whichit is a pan, provides key management
personnel services Lo the Seres Trust.
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AULD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash ash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash at bank, cash on hand. time deposits, and short-term
highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amonmts of cash and subject to insignificam

figk of changes in value. Cash at bank is camied at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents denominated in other cumrency are translated into AUD at the applicable
rate of exchange at the reporting date.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank.

Redeemable units are classified as equity instruments when:

*  The redeemable units entitle the holder to a pro rata share of the Series Trust’s net assets in
the event of the Senes T s liquidation.

¢+  The redeemable nmits are in the class of instmuments that is subordinate to all other classes of
instriments.

*  The redeemable units in the class of instruments that is subordinate (o all other classes of
instruments have identical features.

¢+  The redeemable units do not include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset other than the holder's rghts to a pro rata share of the Senes Trust's net assets.

+  The total expected cash flows attributable to the redeemable units over the life of the
instrimment are based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recogmised net assets
or the change in the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Series
Trust over the life of the instrument.

In addition to the redeemable units having all the above features, the Series Trust must have no other
financial instrament or contract that has:
«  Total cash flows based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net
assets or the change in the far value of the recognised and wnrecognised net assets of the
Series Trust, and
¢«  Theeffed of substantially restricting or fixing the residual retum to the instrument holders,

The Series Trust continuously assesses the classification of the redeemable participating units. If the
redeemable participating units cease to have all the feamres or meet all the conditions set onl 1o be
classified as equity, the Series Trust would reclassify them as financial liabilities and measure them
al fair value at the date of reclassification, with any differences from the previons carrying amount
recogimsed in equity, [Fthe redesmable uts subsequently have all the features and meet the conditions
to be classified as equity, the Series Trust would reclassify them as equity instraments and measure
them at the carrying amount of the liabilities at the date of the reclasafication.
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AULD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Unitholders” capital (continoed)
The issuance, acquisition, and cancellation of the redeemable participating units are accounted for as
equity transactions, Upon issuance of units, the consideration received is incloded in equity.

Mo gain or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale,
issuance, redemption, or cancellation of the Senes Tra's own equity insrnuments,

gl i fnfure expenses for the senes 1rusl

As provided for within the offering memorandum (the “Offering Memorandnm™), upon its
establishment, the Seres Trst has provided for certain fees, including admimstration fees, andit fees,
and other operating expenses, pavable to senvice providers for the term of the Series Tmst as
determined by the Manager. This up-front provision of fees is intended to ensure that contimune
investors are not disadvantaged when redemptions ocour leaving them with a disproportionate share
of these costs which were commutted at the launch of the Series Trust. These provisions have been
fully reflected in the net asset value published during the current accounting period.

The audited financial statements are prepared i accondance with [IFRSs. Certain of these provisions
represent provisions for expenses relating to services that will be provided to the Seres Trust over its
life and therefore are required to be recognised over the lifie of the Series Trust in accondance with
IFR.Ss.

Therefore, where these provisions relate to expenses o be incurred in fiuture periods, these have been
excluded from the statement of comprehensive income and the statement of financial position, As the
exclusion of these provisions in the statement of comprehensive mcome and statement of financal
position results in a difference in companison to the published net asset value for the reasons stated
above, a reconciliation has been provided in Mote 10 to the financial staements,

Met gain or logs on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Met gains or losses on financial assets at FVPL are changes in the far value of financial assets

designated vpon imitial recognition as at FVPL and exclude interest income.,

Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of financial instruments for the period
and from reversal of the prior period’ s unrealised gains and losses for finanaal instruments which
were realised in the reporting period.

Fealized gains and losses on disposals of financial instmoments classified as at far value through profit

or loss are calculated using the weighted average method. They represent the difference between an
instrument’s indtial camving amount and disposal amount.
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AULD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

s ristee’ s Me fees

The Trustee and the Trustee’s Delegate are entitled to receive a trustee fee of 0.1% per annum of the
offer price multiplied by the number of units outstanding (the “Fee Amount™ ) accrmed and calculated
oft each valuation day and payable monthly in amears, subject to a mindmim quaterdy fee of
AUDT.500. The Trustee and the Trusee's Delegate will be entitled to receive transaction and
processing fees al normal commerdal rates. For the custody of the Trust's assets, the Trustee and the
Trustee's Delegate will also be enfifled to receive a custodian fee of 0.025% per anmum of the assets
under custody, accrued and calculated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in amears.

The trustee and trustee’s delegate fees for the vear totaled AUD 175,031 (2021 AUD218,423) of
which AUD15.021 was payable as at 31 July 2022 (2021; AUDI1S.891) and is included in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities.

Agent company's fee

Mitsubishi UFT Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Lid {the Agent Company and Distributor” jis entitled
to receive a fee of 0.1%% per anmam of the Fee Amount accrued and calculated as at each valuation day
and pavable monthly in arrears,

The agent company's fee for the year totaled AUDITS 031 (2021 AUD218423) of which
AUDA0,276 was payable as at 31 July 2022 (2021: AUDS0,146) and 15 included in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities.

The Agent Company and Distributor 15 also entitled to receive a distnbutor fee of 0.4% per annum of
the Fee Amount accrued and calculated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

The distnbutor's fee for the vear totaled AUDTO0, 125 (2021 AUDST3,693) of which AUD161,105
was payable as at 31 July 2022 (2021 AUD200.582) and is included in accounis payable and accrued
liabilities.

Management fees
The Manageris entitled to receive a management fee of 0, 3% per annum of that pant ofthe Fee Amount

which 15 equal to or less than AU 100,000,000 and 0.1%% per anmum of that part of the Fee Amount
which is greater than AUD 100,000,000 accrued and calculated on each valuation day, payvable
monthly in mmears and subject to 8 mindmum annual fee of AUD20,000, The Manager will also be
emtitled to receive ot of the assets of the Series Trust an inceplion fee of USDG0,000 payable as soon
as possible after the initial closing date.

The management fee for the vear totaled AUDATA483 (2021; AUDM1T.875) of which AUD34, 199
was payable as at 31 July 2022 (2021: AUD38,069) and is included in accounts payable and accrued
liabdlities.

Investment advisor fees

Mitsubishi UFT Kokusai Asset Management Co., Ltd. (the “ Investment Advisor™) is entitled to receive
a fee of 0,25% per annum of the Fee Amount acerued and calenlated as ot each valuation day and
payable monthly in arrears.

0
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AULD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

5. FEES {continued)

Th: m!.'Esf.men[ advisor fee for the year totaled ALUD437.578 (2021: AUDS46,058) of which
AUDAT, 552 was payable as at 31 July 2022 (2021: AUDYT 226) and is incloded in acoounts payable
and accrued liabilities.

is0r fees (continued)

Cither fees

The ather fees including andit, legal and other operating fees for the year totaled AUD140,303 (2021:
AUDI8R.635) of which AUDTO0, 169 was pavable as at 31 July 2022 (2021 AUDI0OL40%) and is
included in accounts payable and accrmed liabilities.

. CASH AND CaSH EQUIVALENTS

Asat 31 July 2022, the cash at bank of AUD3,828,519 {2021: AUDS,724,508) represented a deposit
of AUD4,801,774 (2021 AUDT,608,830), a United States dollar deposit of USD29%201 (2021:
USD284.378) equivalent 1o AUD427004 (2021: AUD385,362), a British Pound Sterling deposit of
GBP26.469 (2021: GBP26.469) equivalent to AUD4E,059 (2021: AUD49.996) and a non interest
bearing Japanese Yen deposit of JPY 51,597,422 (2021 JPY54,996,222) equivalent to AUDS53682
(2021: AUD6S0I20). Al deposits were placed with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limated (“HSBC™), an affiliated company of the Trustee.

T FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIE VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2022 2021
AUD AUD
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, at cost 151,488,140 190,039,383
Unrealised (lossygain { 6.591.588) 6,201,261
Financial assets at fair valoe through profit or loss, at fair
value 144,596,552 196,240,674

The Performance Linked Mote iz linked to the performance of the Underdving Fund. The retun from
the Performance Linked Note will be determined by reference to the value of a notional investment in
the Undedying Fund The Performance Linked Note has been issued by the Performance Linked Mote
I=suer with a matunity date of 30 April 2025

The payvment by the Zero Coupon Note Issuer of the redemption amount of the Zero Conpon Note at
scheduled maturity date 15 secured by a swap, under which the Zero Coupon Note [ssuer pays the issue
proceeds of the Zero Coupon Mote (o swap counterpanty on the issue date and receives from swap
counterpany the scheduled redemption price multiplied by the principal amount on schediled maturity
date, The Zero Coupon Mote will be redeemed on their scheduled maturity date on 30 Apnl 2025 at
100%a of their principal amount,
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AULD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR. LOSS (continued)

The breakdown of the financial assets at fair value through profit or less is as follows:

Holdings Fair value % of net
Asat 31 July 2022 AUD asaElE
Performance Linked Note 152,780,000 6,462,594 4.31%
Zero Coupon Note 152,780,000 133433958 92.33%
Total 144,866,552 06 .64%

Holdings Fair value %o of net
Asat 31 July 2021 AUD assels
Performance Linked Note 191,660,000 9420672 4.64%
Zero Coupon Note 191,660,000 186,811,002 91.96%
Tatal 196, 240,674 06 .60%

8. UNITHOLDERS' CAPITAL

Subseriptions

Druring the Initial Cffer Period, Units may be subscribed for by Eligible Investors at the Offer Price
per Umi, The Initial Offer Penod wall commence on 31 Angust 2005 and will close on 7 October 2015
(the "Initial Offer Period”). Units subscribed for during the Initial Offer Period will be issued on the
Initial Closing Date. The Manager may determine toterminate the initial offer of Units for any reason.

Following the expiration of the Initial Offer Perod, Units will not be available for subscrption.

Redempiions

Undts may be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders on each Repurchase Day, which
ig each Dealing Day and/or such other day or days as the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee)
may in any particular case determine, up to and including the Final Repurchase Day.

The minimum number of Units that may be submitted for repurchase as at any Repurchase Day by

any Unitholder is 10,000 Units, with amounts in excess thereof being in integral multiples of 10,000
or such other amounts as the Manager may determine.
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

3. UNITHOLDERS CAPITAL {continued)
2022 2021
AUD AUD
Units in issue:
155,670,000 {2021: 196,020,000) units of AUDO0 each 155,670,000 196,020,000

MNumber of Mumber of

anits s
Mumber of issued and fully paid nmits:
Al beginning of the vear 196,020,000 246,700,000
Redeemed during the vear { 40,350,000) ( 50.680,000)
Al end of the year 155.670.000 196020000

g, TAXATION

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, the Trst and the Series Tmst will not be liable for any
profits or capital gains tax in the Cayman [slands,

The Trst has received an undenaking from the Govemor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands in
accordance with Sedion 51 of the Trusts Act (Revised) of the Cayman Islands that, for a period of 50
years from the date of the creation ofthe Trust, any legislation enacted in the Cayman [slands imposing
tax computed on profits or income, or computed on capital assets, pains or appreciation or any tax in
the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax shall not be applicable to the Trust.

Income from other jurisdictions, including distributions from securities issued in other countries, may
be subject to withholding or capital gain taxes imposed by such conntries. Withholding taxes on the
foreign income may be withheld in accordance with the applicable country®s tax rates,

I3
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

0. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS FER THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PUBLISHED NET ASSET VALUE

2022 2021
Al ALID
Met assets attribitable to unithol ders per financial statements 149,932,666 203,142,789
Adjustment o provisions (see (a) below) { 2.286.616) ( 2.4185664)
Met assets used for caleulating published net asset valne
per it & at the reporting date 147,646,050 200,724,125
Published number of units in issue as at 31 July
(see MNote 8) 155,670,000 196,020,000
Published net asset value per umt in issue (see (b) below) 05484 1.023%
Met assel value per wl inissue (see () below) 0.9631 10363

(a)  The published net asset valoe per unit issued is caloulated in accordance with the Offering
Memorandum and includes a provision forthe trustee fee, andit fee and other operating expenses
throughout the intended life of the Series Trust, instead of those amounts being expensed in the
period they relate (o, as required under [FR. S5,

(b) The caleulation of published net asset value per unit of AUD0.9484 (2021: AUD1.023%) is
based on the net asset value of AUDL47.646,050 (2021 AUD200,724,125) and on the total
number of 155,670,000 units issued at 31 July 2022 (2021: 196,020,000},

{ch  The caleulation of net asset value attributable to wnitholders per the fnancial statements per wmt
of AUD0S631 (2021 AUDLO3637 15 based on the net asset value of AUD 149932666 (2021:
AUD203,142,789) and on the total number of 155,670,000 units issued at 31 July 2022 (2021:
1496, 020, 000),
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

1. FINANCIAL INSTREUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES

her finandal instruments

The Seres Trust's investing activities expose it to varions (vpes of fsk which are associated with the
financial instruments in whichit invests. The most important types of financial risk to whichthe Series
Truet is exposed are market risk, credit nisk and liquidity rsk. Market nsk includes foreign curmency
risk, price risk and inferest rate risk

The investment management policy of the Senes Trust is determined throngh the following process:
The Manager provides non-discretionary management of the Series Tmst's assets and primarily will
ensure investments are consistent with the investment objectives of the Seres Trst and is responsible
for taking reasonable steps and exercising all doe diligence to avoid the property of the Series Trost
being used or invested contrary to the investment and borrowing limitations set out in the Trust Deed
and the Offering Memorandum. The Board of the Manager has overall responsibility for the
management of the Series Trust strocinre (o the extent of its responsibilities as detailed in the relevant
Truet Deed and Offering Memoranduum.

The investment management policy is non-discretionary; the Series Trust will invest ils assels on a
1:1 basis between the Zero Coupon MNote and the Performance Linked Note (collectively the * Notes™ ).
Consequently. the refum wnder the Senes Trust depends on the performance of the Performance
Linked MNote and the Zero Coupon Mote. The returm under the Performance Linked Note depends on
a retum linked to that of the Undedying Fund, the operating and financial performance of the
Performance Linked Note Issuer and other factors which might affect the prnce of the Performance
Linked Mote, The retum under the Zero Conpon Note depends on the fluctuation of AUD yield curve,
the operating and financal performance of the Zero Coupon Note Issuer, and the other facdtors which
might affect the price of the Zero Coupon Mote,

The nature and extent of the financial instroments culstanding af the emd of the reporting period and
the risk management policies emploved by the Senes Trust are discussed below,

(a) Market risk

Market risk 15 the nisk that the value of financial assets will fuctuate as a result of changes in market
prices whether those changes are cansed by factors specific to the individual assets or factors affecting
all assets in the market,

The Series Tmst is exposed to market risk on its investments as the redemption value of the
Performance Linked Mote is linked to predetermined rules to that of the Undedving Fund, and,
therefore, the volatility of the portfiolio, This nsk is mitigated in part by the Zero Coupon Note being
redeemed on their scheduled maturity date of 30 April 2025 at 1004 of their principal amount.

25
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

1.

FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {contimed)

(a) Market risk {confinued)

The poit folio of the Undedving Fund comprised the following margin allocation:

Market Sector %o Margin %o Margin

2022 2021
Crops 4.5% 10.0%%
Livestock 2.4% 5.5%
Energies 15.6% 20.7%
Base Metals 4.9% T.4%
Precious Metals 11.4% I
Currencies 23.4% 22.5%
Bonds 11.2% 5.2%
Rates/Cash equities 7.9% T7.9%
Index 15.2% 13.5%
Credit 2. 1% -
Industrials 1.2% -
Rounding 0.2%% 0.5%
Total 100 (%% 100.(%%

{f) Foregign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or liabilities will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates. Units issued by the Series Trust are denominated in AUD and units
are only issned and redeemed in that cumency. The majority of the assets of the Series Trust are
invested in the Notes which are denominated in AUD.

The Series T4 is exposed to foreign cumency risk to the extent that the Performance Linked Mote
has exposure to cumency risk as the Undedving Fund to which they are linked will reflect the
component investments which are traded in currencies other than AUD. Accordingly, the value of the
portfolio and, therefore, the value of the Performance Linked Note may be affected favorably or
infavorably by fluctuations in currency rates,
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

11. FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {contimed)
(a) Market risk {confinued)
{f) Forelgh currency risk {cortivied)
ALSL July 2022, the Series Trust also has exposure to currency rsk becanse it has assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the AUD. The Series Trust's currency exposure of net assets

was as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities by currency (totals presented in AUD based on 31 July 2022 and 31
July 2021 exchange rales):

Asat 31 July 2022

JBY UsD GBP AUD Total
AUD
Assels
Casgh and cash equivalents 553,682 427004 46,060 4,801,773 5828519
Amount due from broker - - - 2,740,876 2,740,876
Finmmcial assets at Fair value
through profit or loss - - - 144,896,552 144 896,552
Interest receivable - 95 2 16,704 16,801
Total assels 553,682 427,099 46,062 152,455,905 153,482,748
Liabilities
Redempiion payable - - - 3,191,760 3191760
Accounis payable and accrued
habilities 25,794 44,375 - 288,153 358,322
Total liabilities 25,794 44,375 - 3,479,913 3,550,082
Met currency exposure SIT.BEE 0 3E2.T24 46,062 148,975,992 149,932,666
27
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {contimed)
(a) Market risk {confinued)
{f) Forelgh currency risk {cortivied)

Asat 31 July 2021

IPY UsD GBP AUD Total
AUD
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 680,320 3853462 49,5956 7,608,830 8,724,508
Aamount due from broker - - - 4,464 204 4, 464 204
Finmmcial assets at fair value
throngh profit or loss - - - 196,240,674 196,240,674
Total assels 680,320 JB5.362 49,996 208,313,708 209,429,386
Liabilities
Redemption payable - - - 5,830,275 5,830,275
Accounis payable and accrued
habilities 29,100 72299 - 354,914 456,322
Total liabilities 29,109 72,299 - 6,185,189 6,286,597
MNet currency exposure 651,211 313,063 49,996 202,128,519 203,142,789
28
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

1. FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {contimed)
(a) Market risk (continued)
{f) Forelgh currency risk {cortivied)
Sensitivity analvsis
AL (2021:10%) rengthening of the AULD against the following currencies at 31 July 2022 would
have decreased increased net assets by the amounts shown below. This sensitivity analysis represents

management's best estimate of a reasonable possible change and assumes that all other vanables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant,

Met Assets Wet Assets

2022 2021

ALTD AUD

IPY 52.789 65.121
USr 38,272 31,306
GBF 4,606 5,000

A% (2021 10%6) weakening of the AUD against the above cumencies at 31 July 2022 would have
had the equal bt opposite effect on the above cumrencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis
that all other variables remain constant,

Those investors whose financial assets are measured in currencies other than the AUD will be exposed
to fluctuations in forgign exchange rates, Even when the net asset value of units of the Series Trst is
greater than the principal inatially invested in AUD, the net asset value may have decreased in terms
of the investors’ curmendcies.

(i) Price rivk

Price risk anses mainly from uncertainty about fitire prices of financial instnoments held, which are
classified as * financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™, It represents the potential loss the
Series Trust might suffer through holding market pesitions in the face of price movements.

Investments in the Motes are valued & the close of each valuation day at a price provided by Goldman
Sachs Intemational {the *Calculation Agent™). For the purpose of the published MNet Asset Value, the
price provaded by the Caleulation Agent is treated as conclusive by the Manager, the Trustee, and the
Trustee's Delegae,
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

11. FIMNANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {contimed)

(a) Market risk (continued)
{f) Price rivk {eontinied)

Prce nisk of the Series Trust anses from price fluctuations of the Performance Linked Mote, These
price flucinations will be as a result of changes in the volatility of the managed commaodities ftures
which will have an effect on the value of the predetermined rules to that of the Undedying Fund.
These fluctuations will be reflected in the price of the Performance Linked Note and will affect the
Series Trust's nel assel value.

The return on the units depends on changes in values of a pontfolio incloding the Undedying Fund.
The trading price of the units may vary considerably before the maturity date due, among other things,
to fluctuations in the price of the managed commodities fitures that make up the Underdving Fund
and other events. The units are not equivalent to investing directly in the Underlying Fund

A 1% (20210 1%) ncrease in the managed commodities futures fund at 31 July 2022, wath all other
vanables held constant, will increase the Series Trust's net asset value and profits by approximately
AUD524 (2021 AUDZE29). A 190 (2021 1%0) decrease in the managed commodities fitures find
at 31 July 2022, with all other vanables held constant, will decrease the Series Trust’s net asset value
and profits by approximately AUDG 524 (2021 AUD2.829) This sensitivity analvsis represents
management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible change.

Some hmatations of sensitivily analysis are:

+ the market price risk information is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and accurate
mumber,

o ithe market price mformation represents a hypothetical outcome and 1= not mtended (o be
predictive; and

«  future market conditions can vary significantly from those experienced in the past.

{fif) Iriterest rate risk

Interest rate rigk is the nsk that the value of financial instruments and future cash flows will fluctuate
as a result of changes in market interest rates.

A 1% (20210 1%&) increase in the AUD vield curve at 31 July 2022, with all other varables held
constant, will decrease the Series Trust's financial assets at fair valoe through profit or loss and
consequently the net asset value and profits by approximately AUD3 806,934 (202]1: AUD7,005,413).
A1 (2021: 1%6) decrease in the AUD vield curve, with all other variables held constant, will increase
the Seres Trust's net assel value by approximately AUD3, 306,934 (2021 AUD7T,005413). Ths
sensitivity analysis represenis management s best estimate of a reasonable possible change.
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

11. FIMNANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {contimed)

(a) Market risk {confinued)
{fii) Triterest rate risk {contined)

The Series Trust is exposed (o interest rabe risk on it cash and cash equivalents, which are placed in
inferest bearing accounts. The amount of cash and cash equivalents held at 31 July 2022 amounts to
3896 (2021: 4.29%%) of the Series Tmst's net asset value. The sensitivity to changes in inferest rates
on these amounts and their consequent impact of the Series Tmst's net asset value is considened not
to be matenal. It is not the policy of the Series Tmst to refain cash except to cover anticipated costs,
however the cash position at the reporting date includes amounts held to pay short term repurchases.
The sensitivity to a 1% (20212 %) movement in the AUD and USD interest rabes at 31 July 2022 is
highly unlikely to result in a significant increase in interest earned on cash held and management have
assessed that any potential increase or decrease in the Seres Trust's total assets and profit 15 not
congidered to be material. This sensitivity analysis represents management’'s best estimate of a
reasonable possible change.

(b) Credit risk

Credit nsk anses from financial mstruments, cash and cash equivalents and deposits with financial
institutions and banks. The Series Trust is subject (o a significant concentration of credit risk as it is
exposed o financial instmuments issned by a single institution and maintains cash and cash equivalents
with a single bank.

Credit nsk relates to the extent to which failures by counterparties to discharge their obligations could
reduce the amount of future cash flows from financial instmaments on hand as at the reporting date,

The ability to manage the credit risk is limited as a result of the Series Trust's stated investment
objectives which require that it invests on a 1:1 basis between a Zero Coupon Mote 1ssued by Signmuom
Momentum Limited and Performance Linked MNote issued by Quantix Financial Products 11 Linated
and its cash and cash equivalents are placed with the Series Trust's Trustee and its affiliated entities
within the Hong Kong and Shangha Banking Corporation Group. In addition, the Calculation Agent
ofthe Note is Goldman Sachs Intemational. This credit risk is managed on the basis that these financial
institufions and banks are independently rated with a minimum rafing of * A" or iis equivalent.

Credit risk disclosures are segmented into two sections based on whether the undedyving financial
instrument is subject to IFRS 9's impainment disclosures or not.

il
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

11.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continued)

(by Credit risk (continued)

Financial assels subfect fo IFRS @ 's impairment requive ments

The Series Trust’s financial assets subject 1o the expected credit loss model within IFRS 9 are only
cash and cash equivalents, amonnt due from broker and interest receivable. At 31 July 2022, the total
of cash and cash equivalents, amount due from broker and interest receivable was AUDE 59 million,
on which no loss allowance had been provided (31 July 2021; total of AUD13.19 million on which no
loss had been incurred). There is not considered to be any concentration of credit risk within these
assets. Mo assels are considered impaired and no amounts have been written off in the period.

Financial assets nof subject fo [IFRS 95 impaivinent requirements

The Series Trst is exposed to credit nisk on its financial instruments, These classes of financial assets
are not subject to [IFRS 9 s impairment requirements as they are measured at FVPL. The carrying value
of these assets represents the Seres Trs's maximum exposure to credit risk on financial instrments
not subject to the [FRS 95 impairment requirements on the respective reporting dates. Hence, no
separate maximum exposure o credit nsk disclosure 15 provided for these mstrument s,

On & October 2022, the Caloulation Agent was rated al A+/A-1 by 5&P Global Ratings, 4 1/P-1 by
Moody's and A+F1 by Fiich Ratings. In addition, the Senes Trust's cash and cash equivalents are
placed with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, which was rated at AA-/A-
1+ by &P Global Ratings, Aa%P-1 by Moody's and AA-F1+ by Fitch Ratings on 6 October 2022,
The Performance Linked Motes Issuer and £ero Coupon Motes [ssner are not rated.

() Liguidity risk

Liquidity msk 15 the nsk that the Senes Trust will encounter difficulty in rasing funds (0 meet
commitments associaied with financial assets. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a
financial asset quickly 8t anamount close 1o its fair value,

Under the terms of the Offering Memorandum, the Series Tmst's wnitholders may request for their
umits to be repurchased on each repurchase day of the Seres Tmst, The Manazer will then redeem a
proportion of the MNotes held by the Series Trust to fimd the unit repurchase, The Notes can be sold
before their maturity date at close to their fair value by the provision of one month's notice. The
redemption terms for the underving Notes are paid to the unitholders within twenty-three business
days from the comesponding repurchase day, thus allowing settlement from the partial sale of the Notes
to be settled before the redemption proceeds are due to be paid to the unitholders. The Series Trust is
exposed 1o lguidity risk as the Motes in which the Series Trust invests may not allow the Seres Tmst
to redeem its units readily.
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

11. FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (contimued)
() Liquidity risk (continued)
A sumimary of the analyses are as follows:

1 month to 3 months
L.ess than less than 3 1o less than  More than 1

Asat 31 Tuly 2022 1 month months | vear year Total
AUD AUD AUD ALy AU
Assefs:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,828,519 - - - 5,828,519
Amount due from broker 2,740,876 - - - 2,740,876
Financial assets ai fair value
through profit or loss - 144,896 552 - - 144,896,552
Interest receivable - 16,801 - - 16,801
Total assels B, 569,395 144,913,353 = - 153,482,748
Liabilities:
Redemption payable 3191760 - - - 3,191,760
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities 358,322 - - - 358,322
Total liabilities 3,550,082 - - - 3,550,082

I month to 3 months
Lessthan  lessthan 3 tolessthan More than 1

Asat 31 Tulv 2021 1 month months 1 year year Total
AUD AUD AU AUD AUD

Assets;
Cash and cash equivalents 8,724,508 - - - 8,724,508
Amount due from broker 4,464,204 - - - 4,464,204
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss - 196,240,674 - - 196,240,674
Total assets 13,188,712 196,240,674 - = 205,429.386
Liabilities:
Redemption payable 5,830,275 - - - 5,830,275
Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities 456,322 - - - 456,322
Total liabilities 6,286,507 - - - 6,266,597

i3
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

12. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Manager considers the capital of the Series Trust to comprize the net procesds from subscriptions
for and redemptions of units of the Seres Trust,

The Series Tmst invests vittually all of its assets in accordance with the investiment objective (which
was ated in Note 1) of the Series Trust and the investment management policy is non-discretionary,

There are no regulatory or stalutory capital requirements to which the Series Trost must comply with.

13, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manager is responsible under the Amended and Restated Master Trust Deed for the management
of the investment and re-investment of the assets of the Series Tmst, the exercise of the power o
borrow money in respect of the Seres Trust, declare and direct the Trmsee to make distributions or
interim distributions to the unitholders out of the income and/or the capital of the Series Trost and for
the issue and repurchase of units of the Senes Trst.

The Trustee is responsible under the Amended and Restated Master Trust Deed for the administration
of the Seres Trust and for keeping the register of unitholders.

All the related parties are entitled to receive fees and expenses out of the assets of the Series Trust.
Detailz of these fees are set out in Mote 5 (o the financial statements.

14. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The level i the far value lerarchy within which the fair value measurement 15 categonsed in its
entirety should be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that 1= significant to the fair valoe
measurement in its entirety, For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair
value measurement in its entirety, 1 a fair valoe measwrement wses observable inputs that require
gignificant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a level 3 measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
Judgment, considening fadors specific to the asset or liability,

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the Managzer, The
Manager considers observable data to be market data that is readily available, regularly distnbuted or
updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by inde pendent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant miarket.

The Series Tmst's financial assets are not quoted in active markets, such as the Zero Coupon Notes
and Performance Linked Notes. Fair valnes of such assets are determined by the Calculation Agent
wsing valuation models in accordance with the term sheets. Such models are not based entirely on
observable data as a result the Series Trust's financial assets are all classified within level 3. A table
showing the split of the unqueted investments between level 1, level 2 and level 3 has not been
imcluded as the financial assets are all classified as level 3.

ks
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

14. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (contimued)

Description of significant unobservable input to valuation:
The significant imobservable input used in the fair value measurements categonised within Level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy as at 31 July 2022 and 2021 are shown below:
Quantitative information of

Shgni ficant the significant
Instrument Valuation technique unobservahle input unchservable input
Performance Linked 3™ party valuation® Index perfonmance 2022 70220 (2021 8.81%)

Mote
*Beased on the valuation by the Calcudation Agend wsing vahieion models in accordance with the ferm sheet

The Performance Linked Note is linked to an index performance which reflects the value of the
Underdying Fund. Note 11 to the financial statements discloses the portfolio of the Underdying Fund
and the NAV of the Undedving Fundis composed of different investments, indices or sirafegies where
the uncertainty around comelation is high, thus, the quantitative disclosure of the sensitivity of the
change in the significant unobservable input is not meaningful. Significant increases{ decreases) in
the index performance in isolation would result in a significantly higher/{lower) fair value
MERSUTEITLENL.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the vear ended 31 July 2022, There
were no transfers into or out of the level 3 measurement during the year.

31 July 2022 AUD
Balance as at 1 August 2021 196,240,674
Disposals during the year:
Proceeds from sale { 37.622.675)
Met realised loss on financial assets at far value through profit or loss { 928,568)
Net change in unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value
throngh profit or loss [ 12,792,879
Balance at 31 July 2022 144,856,552
Total loss Tor the year induded in profit or loss for
assets held at the end of the reporting period { 13.721.447)
M July 2021 ALID
Balance as at 1 Augnst 2020 248,293,512
Disposals during the year;
Proceeds from sale { 52,191,325)
Met realised gains on financial assets at Far value through profit or loss 1,642,396
Met change in unrealised loss on financial assets at far value
through profit or loss ( 1.503.909)
Balance at 31 July 2021 196,240,674
Total gain for the vear included in profit or loss for
assets held at the end of the reporting period 138,487
i3
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMAMNCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 July 2022

15. EVENTS AFTER THE REFORTING DATE

Subsequent to the reporting date and up to the date of approval of these financial statements,
10,960,000 redeemable units in a total redemption amount of AUDT0,298,542 were redeemed from
the Series Trust, Futher redemption requests of 1,320,000 and 1,210,000 redeemable units were
received to be dealt at | December 2022 and 4 January 2023, respectively, once final pricing has been
approved.

There were no other material events after the end of the reporting period up to the date of the
authorisation of these financial statements,

14, APPROV AL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustee and Manager on 16
December 2022,
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2022 11
139,880,074.13 12,979,472
4,406,340.59 408,864
135,473,733.54 12,570,608
144,710,000
0.9361 87
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246,824,028.32

463,024,853.75

132,569,046.36

58,273,643,675
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1Q EQ
2021 12 31
2021 2020
2,120,894 294,529 4,033,538 560,137
540,507 75,060 385,018 53,467
2,661,401 369,589 4,418,556 613,605
(18,989) (2,637) (2,000) (278)
2,642,412 366,952 4,416,556 613,327
2,642,412 366,952 4,416,556 613,327
11 750,000 104,153 750,000 104,153
1,892,412 262,799 3,666,556 509,175
2,642,412 366,952 4,416,556 613,327

2022

14
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2021 2020
2,211,199 307,069 2,327,511 323,221
2,211,199 307,069 2,327,511 323,221

(1,395,981) (193, 860) (727,718) (101,058)

(220,194) (30,578) 155,759 21,630
595,024 82,631 1,755,552 243,794
138,999 19,303 86,735 12,045

(8.167) (1,134) (2,083) (289)
130,832 18,169 84,652 11,756
725,856 100,800 1,840,204 255,549
725,856 100,800 1,840,204 255,549
725,856 100,800 1,840,204 255,549
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1Q EQ
2021 12 31
2020 750,000 104,153 1,826,352 253,626 2,576,352 357,778
1,840,204 255,549 1,840,204 255,549
1,840,204 255,549 1,840,204 255,549
2020 12 31 750,000 104,153 3,666,556 509,175 4,416,556 613,327
2021 750,000 104,153 3,666,556 509,175 4,416,556 613,327
725,856 100,800 725,856 100,800
725,856 100,800 725,856 100,800

(2,500,000)  (347,175) (2,500,000) (347,175)

2021 12 31 750,000 104,153 1,892,412 262,799 2,642,412 366,952

121/190



10 EQ

2021 12 31

EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020

1 2,663,656 369,902 (55,272) (7.676)
2,663,656 369,902 (55,272) (7.676)

(8,167) (1,134) (2,083) (289)

(2,500,000) (347,175)

(2,508,167) (348,309) (2,083) (289)
155,489 21,593 (57,355) (7,965)
385,018 53,467 442,373 61,432
540,507 75,060 385,018 53,467
540,507 75,060 385,018 53,467
540,507 75,060 385,018 53,467
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10 EQ

2021 12 31

10 EQ

102
102

@

(b)

2021 2020

10 EQ

12
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()
)

)

2021 2020
(220,194) 155,759
2021 2020 12 31 10 EQ
10 EQ 1Q EQ

@)

2021 2020
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2 13
138,997 86,722
138,999 86,735
(b)
2021 2020
(8,167) (2,083)
(8,167) (2,083)
©
2021 2020
138,999 86,735
(8,167) (2,083)
130,832 84,652

2035
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2021 2020
27,672 36,357
188,967 195,878
1,897,665 3,794,713
6,590 6,590
2,120,894 4,033,538

2021 2020
(2,000) (2,000)

(16,989)

12 31

(18,989) (2,000)
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2021 2021 2020 2020
188,967 36,357
2,086,632 3,990,591
540,507 385,018
2,816,106 4,411,966
(18,989) (2,000)
(18,989) (2,000)
2021 2020
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

750,000

750,000 750,000
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12
2021 2020
725,856 1,840,204
8,167 2,083
734,023 1,842,287
1,692,450 (1,743,800)
16,989 2,000
220,194 (155,759)
2,663,656 (55,272)
2021 2021 2021 12 31
385,018 130,365 25,124 540,507
385,018 130,365 25,124 540,507
13
102 33.1
14
10 EQ
2021 12 31
15
2022 13 1Q EQ
10 EQ
2022 13 10 EQ

2022 24

130/190



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

131/190



1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Balance sheet
As at 31 December 2021

EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020
Note USD$ USD$
Current assets

Debtors and prepayments 8 2,120,894 4,033,538
Cash at bank and in hand 540,507 385,018
2,661,401 4,418,556
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 9 (18,989) (2,000)
Net current assets 2,642,412 4,416,556
Net Assets 2,642,412 4,416,556

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 750,000 750,000
Retained earnings 1,892,412 3,666,556
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 2,642,412 4,416,556

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 6 to 18 were approved by the Board of Directors on 14th April

2022 and signed on its behalf by:

[Signature]

Andrew Pittom

[Signature]

Gary Carr
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Total profit and total comprehensive income for the year
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020

Notes USD$ USD$

Turnover 2,211,199 2,327,511
Gross profit 2,211,199 2,327,511
Administrative expenses (1,395,981) (727,718)
Other operating (losses)/gains (220,194) 155,759
Operating profit 4 595,024 1,755,552
Interest receivable and similar income 6a 138,999 86,735
Interest payable and similar charges 6b (8,167) (2,083)
Net interest receivable 130,832 84,652
Profit onordinary activities before taxation 725,856 1,840,204
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 7 - -
Profit for the financial year 725,856 1,840,204
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 725,856 1,840,204

All results derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Called up share Retained

capital earnings Total Equity

UsD$ UsD$ usb$

Balance as at 1 January 2020 750,000 1,826,352 2,576,352
Profit for the year - 1,840,204 1,840,204
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,840,204 1,840,204
Balance as at 31 December 2020 750,000 3,666,556 4,416,556
Balance as at 1 January 2021 750,000 3,666,556 4,416,556
Profit for the year - 725,856 725,856
Total comprehensive income for the year - 725,856 725,856
Dividends - (2,500,000) (2,500,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 750,000 1,892,412 2,642,412

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020

Note USD$ USD$
Net_cgsrj (used in)/generated from operating 12 2,663,656 (55,272)
activities
Taxation paid - -
Net_cz_asrj (used in)/generated from operating 2,663,656 (55,272)
activities
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (8,167) (2,083)
Dividends paid (2,500,000) -
Net cash used in financing activities (2,508,167) (2,083)
Net_lncrease/(decrease) in cash and cash 155,489 (57,355)
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 385,018 442,373
year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year: 540,507 385,018
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand 540,507 385,018
Total of cash and cash equivalents 540,507 385,018

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

@

(b)

Summary of compliance

The individual financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (the "Company') have
been prepared in compliance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102, ““The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom
and the Republic of lIreland””(““FRS 102”7).

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Company accounting policies.

Going Concern

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future, and have adopted the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Although the company did not see top line growth in 2021 it was only marginally below the
2020 revenue level and maintained strong EBITDA & Profit before Tax. In addition to this the
Company continued to be cash generative, providing a positive cash flow to Group during the
year, while maintaining the Financial Position of the Company
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

(b) Going Concern (continued)

The Company is part of the 1Q-EQ Group (the““Group””) and overall debt funding is managed at
a Group level. The Group has a record of generating cash from operations, at the same time
significant investment is made to contribute to the long term growth and development of the
Group. The majority of the Group®s revenues are recurring in nature and there are
significant non-underlying costs which mainly relate to the acquisition, integration and
project development costs, all of which are focused on the long term growth of the Group.
The finance structure has been designed to accommodate this growth by, rather than
repayment, capitalising the interest on the convertible preferred equity certificates
(““CPECs~~) allowing reinvestment into the Group.

The Group has demonstrated a solid resilience of the business model throughout the Covid-19
Pandemic and proven its ability to service customers and win new customers with its
employees working from home.

The Directors have undertaken a review of the Company"s trading forecast for the coming 12
months from the date of signing of these financial statements, which shows that the Company
is expected to remain profitable and continue to be cash generative. Therefore, the
Directors believe that the Company will continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future.

(c) Foreigncurrency

( ) Functional and presentational currency
The Company®"s functional and presentational currency is United States Dollars (USD$).

( ) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the underlying
entities using the spot exchange rate at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate when
fair value was determined.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

(c) Foreign currency (continued)

() Transactions and balances (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the total profit and total comprehensive income
statement within “ Foreign exchange (loss)/gain.”

(d) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect
of services rendered from the provision of collective investment scheme, net of any
discounts and rebates allowed by the Company, and company value added taxes. Revenue is
recognised on an accruals basis, with deferral of any cash received in advance. Deferred
income is released to the income statement over the period to which it relates. Other
revenue items relate to:

( ) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis.

( ) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

( ) Management recharge income/expense
Management recharges are calculated based on the services provided and costs incurred by/from
subsidiaries and other group companies during the year.

( ) Management fees
Management fees are received from the investment funds under management as compensation for the
management services provided by the Company. Management fees vary from 0.0175% per quarter to 0.2%
per quarter of either the product of the initial unit price and the number of units in issue at a
Valuation Day coinciding with a Dealing Day, or of the Net Asset Value (all as defined in the
Offering Memoranda and/or Appendices of the relevant investment funds) for all funds. In some
cases, these management fees are subject to a minimum and/or an additional fixed fee also exists.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2

(D

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

( ) Consultancy fees

)

Q)

@

Consultancy fees are received from the investment funds under management for services provided by
the Company relating to the set up or termination of an investment fund or sub fund. Such fees are
determined on a case-by-case basis.

Administrative expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and included within operating expenditure.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, non-financial assets not carried at fair value are assessed to
determine whether there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. If there is such an
indication, the recoverable amount of the asset is compared to the carrying amount of the asset.

The recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. Value in use is defined as the present value of the future pre-tax and interest cash flows
obtainable as a result of the assets continued use. The pre-tax and interest cash flows are
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that represents the current market risk-free rate and the
risks inherent in the asset.

IT the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be lower than the carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement, unless the asset has been revalued when the amounts is recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of any previously recognised revaluation. Thereafter any excess
is recognised in the income statement.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2

@

Q)

(

(

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

IT an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount but only to the extent that the
revised carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised in prior periods. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised in the total profit and total comprehensive income.

Financial instruments
The Company has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.

) Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including amounts due from group undertakings are initially recognised at
the transaction price. Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire or are settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of
the ownership of the asset are transferred to another party or (c) despite having retained some
significant risks and rewards of ownership, control of the asset has been transferred to another
party who has the practical ability to unilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third party
without imposing additional restrictions.

) Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including amounts owed to group undertakings and other payables are
initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing
transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future payments (net
of directly attributable issue costs) discounted at the market rate of interest. Issue costs are
recognised in the income statement over the term of the debt on an effective interest rate basis.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the
contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

)

Q)

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented on the financial
statements when there is a legal ly enforceable right to set off the recognition amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Distributions to equity holders

Dividends and other distributions to the Company®s shareholders are recognised as a liability in
the financial statements in the period inwhich the dividends and other distributions are approved
by the stakeholders. These amounts are recognised in the statement of changes in equity.

Related party transactions

The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the same
group. Where appropriate, transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion of
the directors, separate disclosure is necessary to understand the effect of the transactions on the
Company financial statements
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

(

)

Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continual ly evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Provisions for bad debts and Accrued income

The Company recognises trade debtors and accrued income at recoverable amounts. The
recoverable amount of trade debtors and accrued income is assessed on an individual basis
using the judgement of management to assess the recoverable value of these assets and
guantify the level of provisioning which takes into account an assessment of the customer®s
current and historic financial position, age profile of accrued income and outstanding debt
and assessment of historical recovery rates.

Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after (crediting)/charging:

2021 2020
USD$ usD$
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains (220,194) 155,759

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 the audit fee of the Company was paid by 1Q EQ
Group Management (Isle of Man) Limited, a related entity under common control.

Employees and Directors
Key management compensation
Key management includes the directors and members of senior management. The compensation is

borne by other companies related by common control, primarily 1Q EQ Bermuda Limited and 1Q
EQ Management (Jersey) Limited and is therefore not disclosed in these financial statements.
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6 Net interest expense

(a) Interest received and similar income
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2021 2020
UsD$ UsD$
Bank interest receivable 2 13
Interest on intercompany loan 138,997 86,722
Total interest receivable and similar income 138,999 86,735
(b) Interest payable and similar charges
2021 2020
USD$ usb$
Other (8,167) (2,083)
Total interest expense on financial liabilities (8,167) (2,083)
(c) Net interest expense
2021 2020
USD$ usb$
Interest receivable and similar income 138,999 86,735
Interest payable and similar charges (8,167) (2,083)
Net interest income 130,832 84,652

7 Income Tax

Under current Bermuda laws, the Company is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on either income

or capital gains. The Company has received an undertaking from the Minister of Finance in Bermuda

exempting it from any such taxes at least until the year 2035.
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8 Debtors and prepayments
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2021 2020
USD$ UsD$

Amounts due within one year
Trade debtors 27,672 36,357
Accrued income 188,967 195,878
Amounts owed by related parties 1,897,665 3,794,713
Prepayments 6,590 6,590
2,120,894 4,033,538

The amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, have no fixed date of repayment and

are repayable on demand. Any group undertakings over €1 million bears interest at a rate of

5% per annum.

9 Creditors

2021 2020
UsD$ USD$
Amounts due within one year
Amounts owed to related parties (2,000) (2,000)
Accruals (16,989) -
At 31 December (18,989) (2,000)

The amounts due to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment

and are repayable on demand.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

10 Financial instruments

The company has the following financial instruments:

2021 2021 2020 2020
UsD$ USD$ UsD$ UsD$
Financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost
Trade debtors 188,967 36,357
Other receivables 2,086,632 3,990,591
Cash and cash equivalents 540,507 385,018
2,816,106 4,411,966
Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
Amounts owed to related parties (18,989) (2,000)
(18,989) (2,000)
11 Share capital
2021 2020
UsD$ UsD$
Authorised
1,000,000 common shares of USD$1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid
750,000 common shares of USD$1 each 750,000 750,000

The Company has one class of share capital which carries no right to fixed income.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

12 Notes to the statement of cash flows
Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash from operating activities
2021 2020
USD$ UsD$
Profit for the financial year 725,856 1,840,204
Adjustments for:
Interest expense 8,167 2,083
Operating profit 734,023 1,842,287
Working capital movements:
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors and prepayments 1,692,450 (1,743,800)
Increase /(Decrease) in payables 16,989 2,000
Foreign exchange movement 220,194 (155,759)
Cash flow from operating activities 2,663,656 (55,272)
Analysis of change in net funds
Cash at bank and in hand
At Cash flows Exchange As at
01/01/2021 2021 movements 31/12/2021
Cash at bank 385,018 130,365 25,124 540,507
Total 385,018 130,365 25,124 540,507
13 Related party transactions

Other than note 5, transactions with other wholly owned subsidiaries related by common

control are not disclosed as the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section

33.1A of FRS 102.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

14 Controlling parties

Following the restructure of the group, the Company® immediate parent undertaking is 1Q EQ
Group Holdco (Jersey) Limited (formerly known as Moore Group Limited), a company
incorporated in Jersey.

As at 31 December 2021, the ultimate holding company into which the results are consolidated
is Saphilux Sarl (a Luxembourg entity).

15 Events after the end of the reporting period

On 13 January 2022, FPCI Astorg Vs shareholding in the 1Q-EQ Group was transferred to 1Q EQ
Fund SCSp a French closed ended collective investment scheme in which no individual investor
holds a controlling interest. From 13 January 2022 1QEQ Fund SCSp is considered collectively
by the Board of Managers to be the ultimate controlling party.

On 24 February 2022, Russia invaded Ukraine. As a result of the conflict and sanctions
imposed on Russia and Belarus, the Group have undertaken a review of its exposure to
Ukraine, Russia and Belarus nexus clients. Following this detailed review, the Directors are
of the opinion that the financial exposure is not material to the Company.
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1
(HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited)
2022 11 130 8,053
Q2
(HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited)
2022 11 5,000 8,900
2022 11 30
17.78
49
€
2022 11 20
4
2022 11 405
1

(¢
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1.2
1.3
(a 1993
(b 2020
1.4
1.5 2021 12
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Independent Auditor®s Report

The Trustee

Philosophic 2 Investment Trust - Bond Plus Fund Linked to the Performance of

Winton 15-05 (AUD)

(A series trust of an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed and

Supplemental Trust Deed under the laws of the Cayman Islands)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Philosophic 2 Investment Trust - Bond Plus Fund
Linked to the Performance of Winton 15-05 AUD (the ““Series Trust”?), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 July 2022, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to

the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Series Trust as at 31 July 2022, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Series
Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants = International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards)
(IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Other information consists of the information included in the Series Trust”s management and

administration information. Management is responsible for the other information.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Trustee for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust~
s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Trustee is responsible for overseeing the Series Trust ”s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume

responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
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audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust ”s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management ®s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Trustee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Ltd.

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands
16 December 2022
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Independent auditor®s report to the members of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (the “ company®):
e give a true and fair view of the state of the company"s affairs as at 31 December
2021 and of its profit for the year then ended; and
e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ““The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lIreland; and
e have been prepared in accordance Bermudian Companies Act 1981.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
e the statement of comprehensive income;
e the balance sheet;
e the statement of changes in equity;
e the cash flow statement; and
e the related notes 1 to 15.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102
““The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial
Reporting Council®s (the “FRC"s") Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors™ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the company®s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least
twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern
are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Directors® report, other
than the financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon. The directors are
responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors® responsibilities statement, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company"s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.
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Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the FRC"s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor®s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.
We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company®s industry and its control environment, and reviewed
the company®s documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and
compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired of management about their own
identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates
in, and identified the key laws and regulations that:
e had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. These included Bermudian Companies Act 1981; and
e do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which
may be fundamental to the company®s ability to operate or to avoid a material
penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that
may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the
financial statements.
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As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the
following areas, and our specific procedures performed to address them are described below:
e The valuation of accrued income requires significant management judgement and

therefore there is potential for management bias in revenue recognition. In
response, we tested controls regarding the valuation of accrued income for design
and implementation as well as substantive tests of detail. Our substabtive testing
undertaken, on a sample basis, compared management"s estimate of recoverable values
to amounts billed and recovered post year-end, challenged management on recoverable
values by assessing historic billing and recovery rates based on our understanding
of the specific customer circumstances.

In common with all audits under 1SAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific
procedures to respond to the risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud
through management override of controls, we tested the appropriateness of journal entries
and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates
are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the
following:

e reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to
assess compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as
having a direct effect on the financial statements;

e performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships
that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud;

e enquiring of management and legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation
and claims, and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

e reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company®s members, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermudian Companies Act 1981. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company®s directors those matters we are required to (or have expressly agreed
in this letter to) state to them in an independent auditor®s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the company and the company®s members, as a body, for our audit work,
for our reports, or for the opinions we have formed.

Deloitte LLP
St Peter Port
14 April 2022
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